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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The T.B. Sheldon Memorial Auditorium was dedicated in 1904 as a gift to the 

City. It was constructed at 443 West Third Street, Red Wing, Minnesota, of gray 
brick. The architect for the building was Lowell Lamoreaux from Minneapolis who 
designed it in the Renaissance style.

The large rectangular building also included an additional area off the back 
for dressing rooms. On each side of the building was a portico for carriage traffic 
to come directly to the doors. The front entrance,a triple doorway flush with the 
gray brick wall, was covered by a shallow balcony of the same design and windows 
above which let light into the mezzanine. The grounds on either side of the 
building allowed for garden area. The small grounds are kept up today, one side 
being used as a small rest or park area in the center of downtown Red Wing. The 
inside was embellished with gold and ivory. Marble walls glittered with the sparkle 
of two many-tiered chandeliers and with the light from the ceiling beams heavily 
studded with electric lights. Playgoers were surrounded by plaster busts of 
Shakespeare,Goethe, Beethoven, and Wagner in ornate niches as well as a large oil 
of Sheldon.

The stage itself was framed in a heavy gold procenium arch and hung with a 
drop curtain. The curtain presented a painting of a classic view of ancient Rome 
executed by Peter Claussen of Minneapolis, one of the best-known mural painters 
of the time. The theater provided seating capacity of 864; 363 in the parquet 
section; 241 in the first balcony; 108 in the rear balcony; 120 in the second 
balcony; and 32 in eight boxes. The seating capacity is 900 at present. The stage 
was well equipped to handle any company that might be using the theater. Included 
was the fly gallery containing many useful pieces and an orchestra pit. The 
theater stands essentially as it did after it was built. The auditorium was twice 
gutted by fire and each time reconstruction took place. The auditorium interior 
was,, in the ) 1930s a gutted and, rebuilt of fireproof materials at i consider able 
expense. A foyer has been added to the outside of the building to provide an 
entrance before the lobby. This was added in the 1930s. The balconies were re­ 
worked to provide better and safer structure; the boxes were removed when the organ 
was installed in 1926. The theater has been recently cleaned, to restore the 
original beauty of the building. Also in recent years a new stage floor was added, 
a new front curtain hung, the fly gallery has been electrified, and new light 
controls for the stage have been purchased - all with the express purpose in mind 
of making the building more usable for stage productions. New carpeting and 
upholstery for the chairs also has been added in the last few years. Putting the 
building into good condition, exterior and interior has caused quite an expenditure 
recently. The organ is at present being restored and refurbished.



01 SIGNIFICANCE

PERIOD
—PREHISTORIC
—1400-1499
—1500-1599
—1600-1699
— 1700-1799

—1800-1899 
X.1900-

AREAS OF SIGNIEJCANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
—ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC 
^ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC
—AGRICULTURE 
_ARCHITECTURE 
_ART

—COMMERCE

_COMMUNICATIONS

—COMMUNITY PLANNING
—CONSERVATION
—ECONOMICS
—EDUCATION
—ENGINEERING
—EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT

—INDUSTRY 
_INVENTION

—LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
—LAW
—LITERATURE
—MILITARY 
_MUSIC 

.^PHILOSOPHY
—POLITICS/GOVERNMENT

—RELIGION
—SCIENCE
—SCULPTURE
—SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN 
X-THEATER

—TRANSPORTATION
—OTHER (SPECIFY)

SPECIFIC DATES 1904 BUILDER/ARCHITECT Lowell Lamoreaux - architect

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

When, in gala ceremonies, Mayor A. P. Pierce accepted the T.B. Sheldon 
Memorial Auditorium in 1904 as a gift to the city, he assured Red Wing an unique 
place in history. Whereas government owned and operated theaters were common on 
the continent of Europe at the turn of the century, none existed in this country. 
Thus, the T.B. Sheldon Memorial Auditorium, made possible through a gift of 
$83,000 was the first municipal playhouse in the United States.

The City of Red Wing and its residents have maintained a pride in the 
building since then it has stood as a symbol of the city's cultural aspirations. 
It has, since 1904, been a center for entertainment in the City of Red Wing.

The fine national reputation the theater enjoyed in the first years of 
operation as a cultural showplace and as an incomparably equipped stage, made 
possible the booking of the finest entertainments.

When interest in the theater was beginning to wane, fire gutted the interior. 
The board, despite opinions to the contrary, decided that the building was of 
utmost importance to the city and that it should be fully rebuilt with,, the mQs,t 
modern materials and latest equipment.

Tlie! -advent: tff the movies promised use of the hou's'e" and :"it w££ felt that the 
theater could be operated on a sound financial basis. Interest in the movies 
was so good that in 1926 a pipe organ was installed to provide music for the 
silent movies. Since 1929, and the advent of the talkies, movies have for the 
most part be^n €tie -main attraction at the theater. The theater, however; 1 'continues 
to be used for legitimate theater and musical attractions. Local theater groups 
annually produce several productions. Local musical groups hold concerts; artists 
and theater groups from out of town are brought in to perform on the stage, and 
continue to marvel at the quality of the theater for performance.

The auditorium board has recently shown its interest in the theater as a 
showplace and performance center of historical value by spending some $60,000 in 
a recent project to update the theater and keep the building in good condition. 
The organ used only occasionally in recent years is being completely refurbished 
and remodeled. The theater is located in downtown Red Wing near parking lots 
and is a first choice for productions in the city. The gardens are used by 
shoppers for rest and relaxation.

(see continuation sheet)
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There is at the present time renewed interest in the increased use of the 
Auditorium theater as a center for culture in Red Wing. The building, erected 
for the use and cultural advancement of future generations of the City of Red 
Wing by T.B. Sheldon, continues, over 70 years later, to be a center for culture 
and entertainment for the city. It is the one cultural attraction which has 
continued to be valuable because of the people who have worked for the arts in 
Red Wing. The people of Red Wing continue to be proud of their excellent facility 
for the arts and continue to support both the building and the events. It is 
one of the landmarks which makes Red; Wing residents proud of their history and 
city. It is strongly felt that it has significant historical interest and back­ 
ground to warrant additional attention and preservation for the future.


